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Categories of Interfund Activity

= Reciprocal (exchange/exchange-like

transactions)

1. Interfund loans
2. Interfund services provided and used

= Nonreciprocal (nonexchange transactions)

3. Interfund transfers
4. Interfund reimbursements



45
1. Interfund Loans

= Payments made to others with the
expectation of repayment

* Repayment not expected in a reasonable
time?
o Reclassify as transfer
= Treatment
* Lender — Report receivable

* Borrower — Report payable



®

- Journal Entries for Interfund Loans

DR CR

General fund:

Interfund receivable — enterprise fund $100
Cash $100

(Short-term loan)

Enterprise fund:
Cash $100
Interfund payable — general fund $100
(Short-term loan)



®

2. Interfund Services Provided and Used

= Payments for goods provided or services
rendered
« Payments related to programmatic activity
o Water billings vs. overhead allocation
= Treatment
« Seller = Report receivable + revenue
* Buyer = Report payable + expense/expenditure




© Journal Entries for Interfund Services

Provided and Used

DR CR
General fund.:
Expenditures — parks department $100
Due to other funds — water fund $100
(Purchase of water)
DR CR
Water fund.:
Due from other funds — general fund $100
Revenue — intragovernmental $100

(Sales revenue — water)
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3. Interfund Transfers

= Subsidies

* Including loans without expectation of
repayment in a reasonable period

= Treatment
* Provider — Report transfer out
* Recipient — Report transfer in



®

Journal Entries for Interfund Transfers

DR CR
General fund:
Other financing uses — transfers out — transit fund $100
Cash $100
(Annual subsidy)
DR CR
Transit fund:
Cash $100
Transfers in — general fund $100

(Annual subsidy)



®

Transfers of Capital Assets

Two rules

1. Transfers must equal
o Transfers in = Transfers out

2. A capital asset can never change value as a
result of movement within the financial
reporting entity

10



® Challenge 1: Difference In
Measurement Focus

Governmental funds Proprietary funds

= Capital assets = Capital assets
* Do not report * Report

11
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Practical Result

* Transfers of capital assets between
governmental funds and proprietary funds
cannot “balance”

« Governmental funds cannot report
o The receipt of a capital asset
o The disposal of a capital asset

 Proprietary funds must report
o The receipt of a capital asset
o The disposal of a capital asset

12



Solution

Proprietary funds

* Receipt of capital asset from governmental fund =
Capital contribution (not transfer in)

 Contribution of capital asset to governmental fund =
Loss on disposal (not transfer out)

Governmental funds
* Nothing to report in either direction

13
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Journal Entries

= Transfer of capital asset from general
fund to enterprise fund

14

DR CR
General fund:
[No journal entry]
Enterprise fund:
Capital asset $100
Capital contribution $100

(Receipt of general government capital asset)



®

Journal Entries

= Transfer of capital asset from enterprise
fund to general fund

DR CR
General fund:
[No journal entry]
Enterprise fund:
Nonoperating expense — loss on disposal $100
Capital asset $100

(Donation of capital asset to general government)

15
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Government-wide Financial
Statements

= Single measurement focus and basis of
accounting

* Both governmental activities and business-
type activities report capital assets

o Therefore transfers of capital assets would balance

= Result
 Enterprise fund financial statements
o Capital contribution/loss on disposal

 Government-wide financial statements
o Transfers in/transfers out

16



® Challenge 2: Internal Sales of Capital
Assets at Fair Value

= Asset value = Carrying value
= |f carrying value < fair value

= How to treat the difference?

17
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Example

= Enterprise Fund A sells equipment to
Enterprise Fund B at fair value

= Carrying value:

« Historical cost $100
« Accumulated depreciation (30)
 Carrying value $ 70

= Fair value = $90

18
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Journal Entries

Enterprise Fund A

Cash S90

Accumulated depreciation 30
Equipment S100
Transfer in 20

Enterprise Fund B

Transfer out S 20

Equipment 100
Accumulated depreciation S 30

90

Cash
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4. Interfund Reimbursements

= Repayment from other funds of amounts
paid on their behalf

* Allocation of overhead

= |[reatment

* Recipient of repayment — Reduction of
expense/expenditure

* Fund making payment — Expense/expenditure




®

Journal Entries for Interfund
Reimbursements

DR

CR

General fund:
Expenditure — general government $100
Cash
(Purchase of supplies)

Due from other funds - special revenue fund $25

Expenditure — general government
(Reimbursement due)

Special revenue fund:
Expenditures $25

Due to other funds — general fund
(Purchase of supplies)

$100

$25

$25

21



® Activity Involving Discretely Presented
Component Units

= Transactions vs. interfund activity
 Subsidies received = Revenue
o Not transfer in

» Subsidies provided = Expense/expenditure
o Not transfer out

22



Question 1

Which of the following would be visible In
the statement of resource flows?

A. Interfund loans

B. Interfund reimbursements
C. Transfers

D. All of the above

E. None of the above

23



Question 2

How would a borrowing between two funds
be classified?

A. Interfund loan
B. Interfund transfer
C.EitherAorB

24
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Question 3

How would the general fund classify the
billing of other funds for their proportionate
share of general government overhead?

A. Interfund services provided and used
B. Interfund reimbursements

C. Interfund transfers

D.Either Aor B




Question 4

How would a fund that provided
programmatic services to another fund

classify its billing of the other fund for those

services?

A.
B.
C.

nterfund
nterfund

nterfund

services provided and used
reimbursements
transfers

D.Either Aor B

26



Question 5

How would the general fund classify its
annual subsidy to a water utility?

A. Interfund transfers
B. Revenue and expenditure/expense
C.EitherAor B

27
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Question 6

Which of the following would be reported as a
transfer?

A. A capital asset is moved from governmental
activities to business-type activities

B. A capital asset is moved between two proprietary
funds

C. A capital asset associated with the operations of

a governmental fund is moved to an enterprise
fund

. All of the above
Both A and B

m O
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Question 7

It IS possible that a transaction reported as
a transfer in one set of financial statements
will be reported differently in a separately
Issued set of financial statements.

A. True
B. False



Question 8

A discretely presented component unit pays
$100 (fair value) for a capital asset of the

primary government with a carrying value of
$60. At what amount would the component
unit report the newly acquired asset?

A. $100
B. $60

30



Question 9

If the purchase of a capital asset occurs
within the financial reporting entity, how
would any difference between the carrying
value of that asset and its purchase price
be reported?

A. Revenue /expense or expenditure
B. Transfer in/transfer out
C.EitherAor B



Government-wide Financial
Statements

GB Government Finance Officers Association
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33

Basic Financial Statements

=  Statement of Net Position
= Statement of Activities

Type of basic
financial statement

Statement of position

Statement of
resource flows —
accrual basis

Statement of
resource flows — cash
basis

Private-sector
businesses

Balance sheet
Operating

statement

Statement of cash
flows

Proprietary funds

Statement of net
position

Statement of
revenues,
expenses, and
changes in net
position

Statement of cash
flows

Government-wide
reporting

Statement of net
position

Statement of
activities

N/A



Statement of Net Position
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Scope

Include

« Governmental funds

* Proprietary funds

* Non-fiduciary component units
Exclude

 Fiduciary funds

 Fiduciary component units

35
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Formatting Options

= Net position format (preferred)

Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Subtotal
Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Subtotal
Net position

= Balance sheet format

Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Total

$ 97
_3

$97

_3
$100

($30)

_(2)
_(32)
$ 68

Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Net position
Total

=
[y
== L
S |&E o S
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Approaches to Presenting Assets
and Liabilities

= Relative order of liquidity, or

= Classified presentation
oCurrent
oNoncurrent

= Eilther presentation Is acceptable

37



B lllustration — Relative Order of Liquidity )
Approach

Assets Total Current Portion Noncurrent Portion Average maturity
Type A $100 $80 $20 3 months
Type B $150 $125 $25 5 months
Type C $200 $60 $140 15 months
Total $450 $265 $185 9 months

Assets:
Type A $100
Type B 150
Type C 200

z

Total assets



lllustration — Classified
Presentation Approach

Assets

Type A
Type B

Type C
Total

Noncurrent Portion

Total Current Portion
$100 $80
$150 $125
$200 $60
$450 $265
Current assets:

Type A
Type B
Type C

Total Current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Type A
Type B
Type C

Total non-current assets

Total Assets

$20
$25

$140
$185

$ 80
125

Average maturity

3 months
5 months
15 months
9 months



® Liabilities with an Average Maturity In )
Excess of One Year

= Relative order of liquidity approach
« Report together but disclose components

Liabilities:
Type A $100
Type B 150
TypeC

Due within one year

$ 60

Due in more than one year 140

Total liabilities

-
=
L

Ny
i
=



Activity Columns

Governmental fund data

* Incorporated into governmental activities
Enterprise fund data

* |ncorporated into business-type activities
Internal service fund data

* |ncorporated into activity of predominant
customers

41
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Primary Government Total Column

= Consolidated

« Recelvables and payables between
governmental activities and business-type
activities must be netted

Governmental Business-type Primary Government
Activities Activities Total

Internal balances $100 ($100) $0



®

Discretely Presented Component Units

= Options
 Single column for all units
» Separate column for each unit
» Separate column for each major unit

= Detail on each major unit within basic financial
statements
« Separate column
« Combining statement
- Condensed statements in notes

43
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Optional Presentations

= Total column for reporting entity
« Extra eliminations required

= Comparative data

44
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Presentation of Capital Assets

= At a minimum, depreciating and non-
depreciating assets should be presented
on separate lines

Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress $2,200
Depreciable buildings, machinery, and improvements 700



®

Net Position

= Three components
* Net investment in capital assets
 Restricted net position
 Unrestricted net position

46
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Net Investment in Capital Assets

Include

 All of the government’s own capital assets, even if
iIntangible or acquired without borrowing

» Debt used to construct, acquire, or improve a

government’s own capital asset (including any related
premiums or discounts)

Exclude

« Amounts related to debt proceeds not yet expended
« Borrowings within the primary government

« Borrowings related to capital assets of another
government

47
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Net Investment in Capital Assets

= |f capital-related debt is later refunded,
refunding debt assumes capital-related
character

= |t is possible for the net investment in capital
assets to be a negative number

48



® Net Investment in Capital Assets -
Calculation

Capital assets

- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows
- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended
- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts
payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets



®

Restricted Net Position

Formula:

Restricted resources (assets)
Less:  Related liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
Restricted net position

Related liabilities

- Liabilities that will be repaid from restricted resources

o Exclusive of capital-related debt which are always included as part of
calculation of net investment in capital assets

- Liabilities that provided restricted resources

Restricted = externally enforceable limitations on use

« Parties outside of government (grantors, donors, or other
governments)

* Includes constitutional provisions and enabling legislation

50
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Restrictions Must be Substantive

Governmental activities
o Purpose narrower than governmental activities

Business-type activities
o Purpose narrower than individual enterprise fund

o Total amount reported as restricted net position in
the business-type activities column should equal
the sum of the amounts reported in the enterprise
fund financial statements

Always a positive balance
Flow assumptions may be necessary

51
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Unrestricted Net Position

Residual category

Includes borrowings used to finance
capital grants to others

Includes long-term borrowings within the
primary government

52



Statement of Activities
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Format

Present expenses before revenues

» Reflects public-sector focus on service rather
than profit

54
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Minimum Level of Detall for Expenses

= Governmental activities
By function or program

= Business-type activities

« Different identifiable activities
o Different = Types of goods, service, or programs

o ldentifiable = Specific revenue stream and related
expenses, gains, and losses that are accounted for
separately

= Greater detail encouraged
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Direct v. Indirect Expenses —
Governmental Activities

* Include in program cost by function:

 All direct expense

o Allocate any direct functional/programmatic
expense not allocated at the fund level

* Only direct expense

o Disallocate any indirect costs allocated at the fund
level
— Exception: minor amounts built into charges for services
— Only for purpose of government-wide reporting
» Allocation remains in fund financial statements

56
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Allocation of Indirect Cost

57

= Permitted as part of an expanded

presentation
* Column 1: Direct cost per function
* Column 2: Allocation of indirect costs

Function/Program Expenses Indirect costs
General government:
Function A (general government) $ 100 ($100)
Function B 4,000 40
Function C 5,000 50

Function D 1,000 10

Total

4,040
5,050
1,010



®

Depreciation on General Government Assets

Direct cost of the function that uses the asset

- Example: Depreciation on police vehicles included in
public safety function

Assets used in multiple functions
+ Allocate ratably among functions

Assets used by essentially all functions

* Include in general government function

o Infrastructure
— Expense of function associated with acquisition and maintenance (e.g.
public works)
— Separate line — unallocated depreciation

o Assets other than infrastructure
— Separate line - unallocated depreciation

58
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Interest Expense Related to General
Government Debt

Report as a separate line item
* Expense not attributable to a given function

59
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Program Revenues

Basic characteristics
* I[ncremental
« Sources other than the tax base

60



®
Sources of Program Revenue

= Charges for services

« Those who purchase, use, or otherwise directly
benefit, and

* Those who are otherwise directly affected, even
though they obtain no benefit (e.qg. fines)

= Program-specific grants and contributions

= Earnings on investments that must be
spent on a specific program

61
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ldentification of Program Revenues

= Exclude

* Taxes
« Grants and contributions that are not program
specific
* Include
« Special assessments
« Expenditure-driven grants
 Single-program grants

62



®

Display of Program Revenues

Three basic categories

» Charges for services

» Operating grants and contributions
 Capital grants and contributions

63



P® :
Net Program Cost Format

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital Net
Function/ for Grants and Grants and  (Expense)

Program Expenses  Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
A $500 $100 $10 $100 ($290)




®

Capital Grants and Contributions

= Capital = Not available for operations

- A grant that could be used for either capital or
operating purposes is an operating grant

= Capital = Capital asset of the government

- Pass-through capital grants are not capital
from the perspective of the pass-through
government

65
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® Assigning Program Costs to Individual 6
Functions

= Charges for services

« Report in the function that generated the
revenue

o Even if the resources must be used for some other
purpose

 Policy may be needed
o Fines — Public safety v. judicial
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®  Governmental v. Business-type
Activities
= Separation helps to highlight different
expectations

 Governmental activities

oProgram revenue not expected to recover
a significant portion of cost

* Business-type activities

oProgram revenue expected to recover a
significant portion of cost
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®
Separate Activity Columns

Proeram Kevenues Primary Government

Charges Operating Capital Net (Expense) Revenue .
Function/ for Srants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Program Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities
Governmental
Actioities: A $500 $100 $10 $100 ($290)
Business-type
Actioities: B $120 $140 $0 $0 $20



G@ 69

Primary Government Total Column

= Consolidated

 Transfers between governmental activities
and business-type activities must be
eliminated

« Report interfund services provided and used



Format Example

Wizt (Expenaz) Blevembs and

Program Revenwes Changes in Net Position
Ohperating, )
Charges for Grants and Grants and  Gowvernmental  Business-type
FunctionsPrograms Expenses Servicos Contributions  Contributions Activities Activities Total
Guovernmental Activities:
Admin s tration 54,959,201 55935 E102,060 (54,851, 204) (54,851, 204)
Public safety - police TA17517 499,701 302,223 (7.015593) (7015, 593)
Public safety - fire B 154,710 456,057 191,195 (7,507, 4 600 (7,507 4600
Parks and community services 5498189 LE54 462 (3843 72T (3,843,727
Public works 4771 504 141411 TAT9TR B631,445 (3,200, 6700 (3,200 6700
Community development 2,130,335 Gl0GT1 3R0507 (1,139,157) (1,139.157)
Library 2326,530 TLOS 103,072 (2,152,433 (2,152.439)
Eoonomic development B9 0 96 37142 (BG1 954) (B61,954)
General gowermment TIB,993 353818 55,616 597,113 207,554 207,554
Interest on ong-term debt 1,336,569 (1336569 (1336, 569
Total Gowermmental Activities 38, 692644 3,793,074 1. 969,791 1228 558 (31.700_221) (31.701,221%
Busines-type Activities:
Wastewa ter B, 172,784 B 674971 E502,187 502,187
Water 8,097,701 B, TRBG.TTE 689,077 GE9.0TT
Benicia Marina 582394 318837 TR, 164 (185,393} (185393,
Total Busine sa-type Activities 16852879 17780586 T8, 154 1005 871 1 05 871
Total 555345523 521 573660 52047 955 S8 (31,700,221) 1,005 871 (30,695 3500
Gemeral revemes:
Tanoes:
Property taxes 16,254,148 16,254 148
Sales taoes 12,040 536 12040 536
Ttility users' tax 4,59 385 4,50 585
Franchize tax 2,079,543 2,079,543
Ot her taxes L1213 1, 104,213
Motor vehicle in-Tew, unrestricted 11,172 11,172
Tipocatmnent carmings 3B0381 313557 GO3938
Mizoe]laneous 62398 662,398
Tranafers, net (Mots 4) 15,725 (15, 725)
Tovtal gpmeral revenwes and tramsfers 37144 501 297 852 3T 442,333
Change in Wet Poaition 5443280 1,303, 703 6,746,983
Mt Position-Begi nning B6, 488,093 BS, 627,642 172,115,735
Met Position-Ending S91.931,373  BR6.931 345 S1TEBEGLTIR
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General Revenues

= All revenues that do not qualify as
program revenues

 Taxes

* Grants and contributions that are not
assignable to specific
functions/programs

71
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72

Presentation of General Revenues

Program revenues

Primary government
net (expense) revenue

Operating Capital grants Business-
Function/ Charges for grants and and Governmental type Component
program Expenses services contributions  contributions activities activities Total units
Governmental activities A $500 $100 $10 $100 ($290) ($290)
Business-type activities B $120 $140 S0 S0 $20 $20
Component units C $50 $65 $5 S0 $20
General revenues:
Taxes $300 $300
Investment earnings S5 S5 S5
Change in net position $10 $25 $35 §25
Net Position - Beginning $86,488 $85,627 $172,115 $6,746
Net Position - Ending $86,498 $85,652 $172,150 $6,771




Component Units

One or more separate columns

Data extracted from total column of
component unit report
 Entity-wide column (if it had been presented)

to ensure component units of component
units are also included

73
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Optional Presentations

= Total column for reporting entity
= Comparative data

74



® :
Movement of Capital Assets

= Between governmental activities and
business-type activities

« Reported as a transfer
= Between governmental funds and
proprietary funds

* Reported as a capital contribution/loss on
disposal



®

From Funds to Government-wide
Reporting

= Three-step process

1. Convert governmental fund data

o Different measurement focus and basis of
accounting

2. Consolidate
o Fund financial statements
o Primary government total column

3. Allocate direct costs/disallocate indirect costs

76
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From Funds to Government-wide
Reporting (cont.)

= Typically the result of worksheet
adjustments

 No effect on fund data recorded In individual
funds’ general ledger

« Often involves the use of a special “fund” for
“general government” assets and liabilities

77



Adjustments Workshee

ACCOUNTS RELATED TO GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Statement Statement
Trial Balance Adjustments Total of Activities of Net Position
ASSETS DR CR DR CR DR CR DR CR
Cash and cash equivalents $12,861,463 (z) $5,883,720 $18,745,183 $18,745,183
Investments $21,508,391 (z) $611,286 $22,119,677 $22,119,677
Receivables (net) $12,879,066 (z) $136,271 $13,015,337 $13,015,337
Intergovernmental receivable $1,709,483 $1,709,483 $1,709,483
Due from other funds $480,000 (dd) ($480,000)
Due from component unit $32,615 $32,615 $32,615
Internal balances (aa) $369,470 |(bb) ($386,434)
(cc) ($280,554)
(ee) ($12,000) ($309,518) ($309,518)
Inventories $806,623 (z) $22,671 $829,294 $829,294
Prepaids $48,728 (2) $37,823 $86,551 $86,551
Advances to other funds $290,148 (dd) ($290,148),
NET PENSION ASSET $477,207 (u) ($22,818), $454,389 $454,389
LAND $50,067,172 $50,067,172 $50,067,172
BUILDINGS $191,779,616 (i) $24,046,643
(z) $87,745 $215,914,004 $215,914,004
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (w) ($4,763,767)
ON BUILDINGS ($78,421,631) () ($8,154)
($83,193,552) ($83,193,552)
MACHINERY, EQUIPMENT, $28,553,836 f) $839,243 |(j) ($922,275),
AND VEHICLES © $1,780,184 [(k) ($12,860)
(h) $146,042
)] $128,000
(z) $5,283,268 $35,795,438 $35,795,438
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ON ($19,378,711)|G) $913,101 |(w) ($1,769,317),

MACHINERY, EQUIPMENT, AND VEHICLES (k) $12,860 |(z) ($2,458,833)]  ($22,680,900) ($22,680,900)
INFRASTRUCTURE $206,411,089 (i) $1,415,056 $207,826,145 $207,826,145
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION W)  ($5353,077)

ON INFRASTRUCTURE ($120,858,864) ($126,211,941) ($126,211,941)
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS $22,974,097 (g) $12,357,720 |(i) ($25,461,699) $9,870,118 $9,870,118
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
DEFERRED CHARGE - REFUNDING $611,528 () $207,204 [(y) ($91,970) $726,762 $726,762




Adjustments Worksh

79

eet (cont.)

Trial Balance Adjustments Total Statement of Statement
Activities of Net Position
DR CR DR CR DR CR DR CR
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ($2,162,601) (z) ($814,023)]  ($2,976,624) ($2,976,624)
Contracts and retainage payable ($2,199,240) ($2,199,240) ($2,199,240)
Accrued liabilities ($2,936,017) ($2,936,017) ($2,936,017)
Client deposits payable ($18,367) ($18,367) ($18,367)
Due to other funds ($492,000)|(d $480,000
Advances from other funds ($290,148)|(d $290,148
Bond anticipation notes payable ($6,905,200) ($6,905,200) ($6,905,200)
Unearned revenue ($2,317,521) ($2,317,521) ($2,317,521)
Due to retirement systems ($2,102,213) (z) ($3,268)]  ($2,105,481), ($2,105,481)
ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE ($730,473)|(q) $730,473|(s) ($716,657) ($716,657) ($716,657)
COMPENSATED ABSENCES ($4,864,074)|(q) $973,610|(t)  ($1,353,947) ($5,288,679) ($5,288,679)
CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS (z)  ($3,560,789)] ($3,560,789) ($3,560,789)
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT ($77,491,180)(c) $4,718,317 (d)  ($5,810,000)] ($72,852,863) ($72,852,863)
PREMIUM ON GENERAL OBLIGATION ($503,327)} (x) $83,226((d) ($249,914) ($670,015) ($670,015)
SPECIAL ASSSESSMENT DEBT (@)  ($4,700,000)] ($4,700,000) ($4,700,000)
DISCOUNT ON SPECIAL ASSESSMENT (@) $10,000](x) ($1,000) $9,000 $9,000
LEASES b)  ($146,042)]  ($146,042) ($146,042)
PENSION - RELATED DEBT ($5,437,453)|(e) $697,896 ($4,739,557), ($4,739,557)
NET OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT (v) ($10,548,000)
OBLIGATION (z) ($61,000)
($10,609,000) ($10,609,000)
DEFERRED INFLOW S OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue ($4,874,014)| (o) $329,194
FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION
Fund balance — governmental funds ($41,737,262) (m) ($32,692)
(n) ($48,315) ($42,175,127)
(0) ($329,194)| ($42,175,127)
() (527,664)
NET POSITION ($193,188,832)|(d $280,554|(z)  ($5,337,093)| ($198,245,371) ($198,245,371)




Adjustments Worksheet (cont.)

80

Trial Balance Adjustments Total Statement of Activities Statement of Net Position

REVENUES/GAINS DR CR DR CR DR CR DR CR
Taxes ($90,712,339)| (m) $32,692 [(r) ($314,820)|  ($90,966,803) ($90,966,803)

®) $27,664
Fees, licenses, and permits (57,626,415) (57,626,415) (57,626,415)
Intergovernmental ($17,766,027) $17,766,027) $17,766,027)
Charges for services ($19,091,893)| (aa) $4,405,112 |(2) ($4,534,171)|  ($19,220,952) ($19,220,952)
Fines ($6,670,562) ($6,670,562) ($6,670,562)
Special assessments (5470,000) () ($4,230,000)|  ($4,700,000) ($4,700,000)
Investment earnings ($3,831,798)| (n) $48,315 |(z) ($139,530)|  ($3,923,013) (53,923,013)
Miscellaneous (54,974,420) ) (5128,000)]  ($5,102,420) (65,102,420)
Gain — sale of capital assets G) ($22,276) ($22,276) ($22,276)
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
AND LOSSES
Current:
General government $29,778,662 (@) $150,000 |(e) ($87,166)

(d) $122,710 |(q) ($133,445)

(t) $185,575 |(aa)  ($4,774,582)

W) $1,467,155

(w) $192,046

(2) $4,898,345

(bb) $88,279 $31,887,579 $31,887,579
Public safety $56,726,678 ) $109,518 |(e) ($384,472)

® $1,006,649 |(q) ($723,872)

(W) $22,818

) $5,008,058

(w) $1,377,351

(bb) $167,009 $63,309,737 $63,309,737
Highways and streets $27,472,013 (t) $43,131 |(e) ($127,925)

) $2,802,115 |(q) ($31,015)

(w) $6,881,833

(bb) $68,874 $37,109,026 $37,109,026
Sanitation $8,140,187 () $36,603 |(e) ($14,237)

(w) $2,411,196 |(q) ($26,321)

(bb) $24,132 $10,571,560 $10,571,560
Culture and recreation $23,030,913 (8) $394,487 |(e) ($84,096)

(t) $81,989 |(f) ($839,243)

) $1,270,672 |(h) (5146,042)

(w) $1,023,735 |(q) ($58,957)

(bb) $38,140 $24,711,598 $24,711,598
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Adjustments Worksheet (cont.)

Trial Balance Adjustments Total Statement of Activities Statement of Net Position

Debt service: DR CR DR CR DR CR DR CR

Principal $4,718,317 © ($4,718,317)

Interest $3,236,206 s) $716,657 |(q) ($730,473)

V) $91,970 |(x) $82,226)|  $3232,134 | $3,232,134
Bond issuance costs $272,710 (@) ($150,000)
) ($122,710)

Capital outlay $14,641,909 (8) ($14,641,909)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES/USES
Transfers in ($3,331,604)|(ff) $3,331,604
Transfers out $7,059,813 (ff) ($3,331,604) $3,728,209 $3,728,209
Special assessment bonds issued ($4,700,000)| (a) $4,700,000
Discount on special assessment debt $10,000 (@) ($10,000)
Refunding bonds issued ($5,810,000)](d) $5,810,000
Premium on refunding bonds ($249,914)|(d) $249,914
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent $5,937,204 (d) ($5,937,204),
Capital leases ($146,042)|(b) $146,042
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ($31,450)|G) $31,450
Insurance recoveries ($194,082) ($194,082) ($194,082)
SUBTOTAL $732,515,674 | ($732,515,674) $122,622,385 ($122,622,385) $0 | $174,549,843 | ($156,192,550)| $577,201,168 | ($595,558,461)
DECREASE IN NET POSITION ($18,357,293)|  $18,357,293
TOTAL $732,515,674 | ($732,515,674) $122,622,385 ($122,622,385) $0 | $174,549,843 | ($174,549,843)| $595,558,461 | ($595,558,461)




Sample Adjustment:

Capital Outlays

ltem

Qutlays to con-
struct or acquire
capital assets

Governmental
funds

Expenditures

Governmental
activities

Assets

Action required

Replace expenditures
with capital assets
constructed or
acquired

82



® .
Capital Outlays (cont.)

DR CR
LAND S 560
EQUIPMENT 1,035
Expenditures — capital outlays $ 560

Expenditures — public safety 1,035



Question 1

Which of the following is one of the
government-wide financial statements?

A. Statement of net position
B. Statement of activities

C. Statement of cash flows
D. All of the above

E. Both Aand B

84



Question 2

Data from which of the following would be
Included in government-wide financial

statements?

A. Fiduciary funds of the primary
government

B. Fiduciary-type component units
C.BothAand B
D.None of the above

85



Question 3

Which of the following is the preferred

formatting option for the government-wide
statement of net position?

A. Balance sheet format
B. Net position format
C. Neither Anor B

86
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Question 4

If the relative order of liquidity approach is
used for presenting assets and liabilities, no
distinction Is ever made between the current
and noncurrent portions of an asset or

liability account.
A. True
B. False
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Question 5

Into which activity column would data from

Internal service funds be incorporated?
A. Governmental activities

B. Business-type activities

C. EitherAor B

88



Question 6

Which of the following statements Is true
concerning the treatment of internal
receivables and payables in the primary
government total column?

A. Consolidation Is required
B. Consolidation Is permitted
C. Consolidation is prohibited
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Question 7

Detail on each component unit must be

presented somewhere within the basic
financial statements (including the notes).

A. True
B. False
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Question 8

Which of the following presentations is
mandatory?

A. Total column — reporting entity

B. Total column — primary government
C. BothAand B

D. None of the above
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Question 9

Buildings and machinery can never be

presented on the same line in the statement
of net position.

A. True
B. False
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Question 10

What Is the conceptual basis for the various
components of net position?

A. Distinguishing invested capital from the
cumulative effect of operations

B. Liquidity
C. Relative accessibllity
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Question 11

A government borrows $10,000 for capital
construction, but to date has expended only
$4,000 on project-related costs. How much
of the debt should be treated as capital-
related for purposes of categorizing net
position?

A. $10,000

B. $6,000

C. $4,000




Question 12

Which of the following would be included In
the calculation of restricted net position?

A. Amounts restricted for the repayment of
capital-related debt

B. Amounts restricted for the repayment of
non-capital-related debt

.BothAand B
. Neither A nor B

O O
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Question 13

A grant to a transit fund that could only be
used for transit purposes should be
classified as restricted net position.

A. True
B. False
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Question 14

A water utility and a gas utility could be
reported as a single utilities line on the
statement of activities.

A. True
B. False
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Question 15

Four separate water districts could be
reported as a single line in the statement of

activities.
A. True
B. False

98
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Question 16

Normally, functional expense should
A. Include all direct expense

B. Include only direct expense

C. BothAand B
D.

Parallel the treatment of direct and
iIndirect expense in the fund financial
statements
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Question 17
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Authoritative standards provide a way for
governments that wish to do so to allocate
Indirect costs to functions or programs within
governmental activities.

A. True
B. False




Question 18
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Which of the following statements concerning
depreciation is true for governmental activities?

A. Some depreciation may be included as part
of functional expense

Some depreciation may be included as part
of general government expense

. Some depreciation may be reported as a
separate line item

. All of the above
None of the above

mou O W
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Question 19

How would Interest on a capital lease used
to acquire a fire truck be reported In
governmental activities?

A. Included within the public safety function

B. Included within the general government
function

C. Reported separately as interest expense




Question 20
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Which of the following would never qualify
as program revenue”?

A. Interest earnings

B. Grant revenues

C. Special assessment revenues

D. Tax-increment financing revenues




Question 21
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Which of the following would always qualify
as program revenue”?

A. Interest earnings

B. Grant revenues

C. Special assessment revenues

D. Tax-increment financing revenues
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Question 22

A government receives a grant for a specific
program and then elects to use the proceeds to
acquire a capital asset. How should the grant
revenue be classified?

A. Program revenue: operating grants and
contributions

. Program revenue: capital grants and
contributions

B
C. General revenue
D. Either Aor B




Question 23
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A charge for services that must be used for
a specific function should be reported

A. In the function that generates the charge
B. In the function where it must be used
C. Either Aor B
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Question 24

An Internal service fund serves both
governmental activities (30 percent) and
business-type activities (70 percent). How
should its data be incorporated into the
government-wide financial statements?

A. Include In business-type activities
B. Include in governmental activities
C. Include a proportionate share in each




Question 25
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Which of the following is necessary for the
Inclusion of fund data in the government-
wide financial statements?

A. Conversion

B. Consolidation
C. Allocation

D. Disallocation

E. All of the above
. Both Aand B



EXERCISE

Calculation of Net Investment In
Capital Assets

GB Government Finance Officers Association



B Calculation of Net Investment
In Capital Assets

Example #1

Capital assets S
- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows

- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended

- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets S




B Calculation of Net Investment
In Capital Assets

Example #2

Capital assets S
- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows

- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended

- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets S




B Calculation of Net Investment
In Capital Assets

Example #3

Capital assets S
- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows

- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended

- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets S




B Calculation of Net Investment
In Capital Assets

Example #4

Capital assets S
- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows

- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended

- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets S




B Calculation of Net Investment
In Capital Assets

Example #5

Capital assets S
- Accumulated depreciation

+ Capital-related deferred outflows

- Capital-related borrowings

+ Capital-related debt proceeds not yet expended

- Capital-related retainage payable/accounts payable

- Capital-related deferred inflows

Net investment in capital assets S




Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR)

G Government Finance Officers Association
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" Place in Authoritative Standards

= Basic financial statements = minimum required

for fair presentation

EXHIBIT 9-2
Relationship between the basic financial statements and RSI
Management's
discussion
and analysis
+
Government-wide Fund financial statements
financial statements , )
Governmental Propretary Fiduciary
funds funds funds
Notes to the financial statements
+
Other required
supplementary information

RSI

Audited
basic
financial
statements

RSI

Mandatory
reporting
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® Challenges to Financial Statement
Users

= Governments differ from one another in important ways
(structure, authority, services provided)

= The basic financial statements provide individual fund
data only for major funds

= Basic financial statements may not be sufficient to
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal or
contractual provisions

= Trend data and nonfinancial information are needed to
provide context

= Users also desire management’s subjective assessment

= Recommendation = Issue basic financial statements as
part of a much broader Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) [cAsB codification 2200.101]




®
Value Added by a CAFR

= Provide

* |ntroduction to the government, along with
subjective assessments, as needed

 Information about each individual nonmajor
fund

« Additional schedules to demonstrate
compliance

* Trend data and nonfinancial data




®
Basic Sections of Every CAFR

1. Introductory section

* Introduction to the government, along with subjective
assessments, as needed

2. Financial section
 Information about each individual nonmajor fund
 Additional schedules to demonstrate compliance

3. Statistical section
o Trend data and nonfinancial data
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Additional Sections

4. Investment section
* Pension and other postemployment benefit plans
* Investment pools

5. Actuarial section
* Pension and other postemployment benefit plans
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CAFR

121

EXHIBIT 9-3

The comprehensive annual financial report and its relationship to the basic financial statements and RSI

Mandatory reporting

General information on the government's structure,
services, and environment

+

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

FProprietary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Motes to the Financial Statements

Additional Required Supplementary Information

Information on individual funds and discretely
presented component units and other supplemen-
tary information not required by GAAP

+

Trend data and nonfinancial data

Introductory
section

Financial
section

Statistical
section

CAFR
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Question 1

Which of the following statements best describes
the relationship between authoritative standards
and the issuance of a CAFR?

A. Authoritative standards require the issuance of
a CAFR

B. Authoritative standards encourage the
Issuance of a CAFR

C. Authoritative standards permit the issuance of
a CAFR
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Question 2

A CAFR would provide information on which
of the following?

A. Individual nonmajor governmental funds
B. Individual nonmajor enterprise funds

C. Individual internal service funds

D. Individual fiduciary funds

E. All of the above




Question 3
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Which section of the CAFR normally Is used

to provide any subjective assessments that
may be needed?

A. Introductory section
B. Financial section
C. Statistical section




Question 4
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Which section of the CAFR normally Is used
to present any additional schedules that may
be needed to demonstrate compliance?

A. Introductory section
B. Financial section
C. Statistical section




Question 5
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Trend data normally are presented in which
section of a CAFR?

A. Introductory section
B. Financial section
C. Statistical section




Question 6
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How many sections does the CAFR of a
pension plan or other postemployment

benefits plan typically present?

A. 3
B. 4
C.5



The Financilal Statement Audit

GB Government Finance Officers Association
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Assessment of Quantitative Materiality

= Government-wide financial statements
« Assessed by activity column

= Major funds
« Assessed by individual fund
= Nonmajor funds
« Assessed in the aggregate, regardless of fund type*

= Discretely presented component units
« Assessed in the aggregate*

*Nonmajor funds and discretely presented component
units may be aggregated if not material to the primary
government



G

- Application of Quantitative Materiality
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Financial
Statements

Reporting
Units

Opinion
Units

Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Fund Financial Statements
Statements
Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
S Discretely Aggregate Each Aggrega.te Pension (and Piivate
Governmental Lsliisss presented Each major nonmajor major nonmajor other employee Dlirfose st
o -type governmental : enterprise benefit trust
activities U component tina government enterprise funds
activities . funds fund
units al funds fund gl
l Internal Investment trust Custodial
service funds funds
A4
funds
Separate Separate
Separate Separate p. p.
5 . unit for unit for
unit unit
each each
v VL

Aggregate all
as a single
unit

“Remaining fund information”. Aggregate all as a single unit.




Audit Coverage of Contents of a CAFR

131

Item

Status

Responsibility

Introductory Section
(including letter of transmittal)

Unaudited

Read for consistency

Management’s discussion and

analysis (MD&A)

Required Supplementary

Information

Conduct limited procedures
(i.e., inquiries and comparisons)

Basic financial statements
(including notes)

Audited

Render an opinion on fair
presentation

Required supplementary

Required Supplementary

Conduct limited procedures

information (other than MD&A) Information (i.e., inquiries and comparisons)
Option 1:
Option 1: Render an opinion on fair
Combining statements and Audited presentation
individual fund financial Option 2: Option 2:

statements and schedules

Other supplementary

Render an opinion on fair

information presentation in relation to the
basic financial statements
Eender an opinion on fair
Other Supplementar ] ]
Other financial schedules ) PP ) y presentation in relation to the
information o ]
basic financial statements
Statistical section Unaudited Read for consistency




®
Auditing Standards

= Generally accepted auditing standards
(GAAS)

= Generally accepted government auditing
standards (GAGAS)
« Government Auditing Standards (GAS)
* “Yellow Book™

 Use

o Single audits, state mandate, grant requirement, or
voluntary use
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Relationship Between GAAS and
GAGAS

GAGAS general standards
* Replace GAAS general standards

GAGAS performance standards
» Build upon GAAS performance standards

GAGAS reporting standards
 Build upon GAAS reporting standards
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Reporting: GAAS v. GAGAS

= GAAS
 Fair presentation of financial statements

= GAGAS

 Fair presentation of financial statements

* Internal control and compliance
o Disclose deficiencies identified during the audit
o No opinion rendered
o Findings v. letter to management
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Audit FiIndings
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Four elements

1.
2. Condition

3.

4. Effect or potential effect

Criterion/criteria

Cause



@
Audit Procurement

= Closely tied to audit quality

= Process should
* Be open and competitive

* Produce a comprehensive request for proposals
(RFP)

 Give priority to auditor qualifications
* Be documented in a written agreement
= Other GFOA recommendations
» Use a multi-year audit contract (five-year minimum)
* Do not mandate auditor rotation



Introductory Section of a
CAFR

GB Government Finance Officers Association



Sources of Guidance
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Authoritative standards prescribe

- Table of contents

 Letter(s) of transmittal (no detalil)

« “Other material deemed appropriate by management”

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)

recommends the inclusion of

« Organizational chart/list of principal officials

* Reproduction of the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting (if applicable)

GFOA also offers guidance on the basic contents of the

letter of transmittal



Table of Contents
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Clearly delineate basic sections
* Introductory section

* Financial section

 Statistical section

Subdivide financial section

 Basic statements
« RSI
 Other contents

Page number for each item




@
| etter of Transmittal
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= Functions
* Introduce government
* Provide analytical overview

« Address topics not addressed in
management’s discussion and analysis
(MD&A)

o Content of MD&A is limited to specified topics



| etter of Transmittal

141

* Provide subjective management analysis
o MD&A is limited to objective analysis

* Provide information useful in assessing
economic condition

o Factors that may cause today’s financial position to
Improve or deteriorate

= Avoid duplicating contents of MD&A
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“ Components of the Letter of Transmittal

1. Formal transmittal
2. Profile of the government

3. Information useful in assessing a
government’'s economic condition

4. Awards and acknowledgments




1. Formal Transmittal
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Use as “cover letter”

Acknowledge management’s
responsibility

Refer to the independent auditor’s report
Refer to MD&A
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2. Profile of the Government

= Function = Give users essential background on
the government and its operations
* Population
« Structure
* Types and levels of services provided
« Component units
» Potential component units excluded from the report
+ Brief summary of the budget process

 Governmental funds with an annual or biennial
appropriated budget

* Legal level of budgetary control
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3. Information Useful In Assessing
Economic Condition

= Function = To identify factors that could
cause today’s financial position to improve or
deteriorate In the future

= Types of information useful for this purpose
* Information regarding the local economy
* Results of long-term financial planning
* Relevant financial policies

Major initiatives

Budget
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4. Awards and Acknowledgements

= QObjective indicators of the quality of the
government’s financial management

« Awards related to financial management;
both from GFOA and other



rganizational Chart
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Mame of Government Organizational Chart
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List of Principal Officials
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Mame of Government
List of Elected and Appointed OHicials
Drecember 31, 2015

Elected Officials

Mayor

Council Member — Ward 1

Council Member - Ward 2

Council Member - Ward 3

Council Member - Ward 4

Council Member - Ward 5

Council Member - Ward &

Council Member — At large
Council Member — At large

Appointed Oficials

Manager

Assistant Manager

Attorney

Clerk

Culture and Recreation Director

Electric Manager

Finance Director

Fire Chief

Fleet Management Director

Internal Audit Director

Management Information Systems Director

Personne] Director

Police Chief

Sanitation Director

Streets and Highways Director

Fublic Satety Ermplovees Retirement System
President

Water and Sewer Authority Chair

Barbara [. McoCown
Marc Christian
Brittain A. Meal
Paul Edouard
Wilma J. Gouge
Gregory Joseph
Marie Desmarais
Hannah Lee
Mathan Scott

Lorraine M. Desmarais
Josephine Paquette
James=s M. Falconer
Lynn MNguyen

John D). Fishbein
Julius . Howard 111
Susan L. Wakefield
James A. Phillips
Delores Smith
Bonnie Ashman
Kathleen Schultz
Zhikuan Hu

Asia Roberson
Erisztina Mihaly
Carole Colin

Richard M. Steftanovich
Qun Wang
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Certificate of Achievement
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Reproduce the Certificate of Achievement for the

preceding year

B

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting
Presented to

City of Columbus
Ohio




Question 1

What Is the source of guidance for the
contents of the introductory section of a
CAFR?

A. Authoritative accounting standards
B. GFOA
C. BothAand B



Question 2

The letter of transmittal may be used to
A. Address topics not addressed in MD&A

B. Provide subjective analysis on topics
addressed in MD&A

C. BothAand B
D. Neither A nor B



Question 3

The letter of transmittal should provide

A. Background on the government and its
operations

B. Information useful in assessing economic
condition

. Neither A nor B
.BothAand B

O O
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Question 4

In the letter of transmittal, management
should expressly refer to

A. The independent auditor’s report
B. MD&A

C. Neither Anor B
D. BothAand B



Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A)

G Government Finance Officers Association
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Purpose, Status, and Location

Purpose

 To furnish an objective and easily readable analysis of
a government’s financial activities

Status

* Required supplementary information (RSI)

o Unaudited
— Subject to certain limited procedures

Location

* Immediately following the independent auditor’s
report
o Unlike other types of RSI
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Contents — General Rules

= “The minimum is the maximum”

* Only topics specifically prescribed by authoritative
standards may be addressed

 Additional detalil on those topics is encouraged

= Only objective information
* “Currently known...”

= Avoid duplication with notes



Contents - Specific
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A discussion of the basic financial statements
Condensed comparative data

An analysis of the government’s overall
financial position and results of operations

An analysis of the balances and transactions
of individual funds

An analysis of budgetary variations
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Contents - Specific (cont.)

6. A description of capital asset and long-term
debt activity

/. Adiscussion of infrastructure (if the modified
approach is used)

8. Adiscussion of currently known facts,
decisions, or conditions that are expected to
have a significant effect on financial position or
results of operations



159

© 1. Discussion of the Basic Financial
Statements

= Relationship between government-wide
financial statements and fund financial

statements
* Analysis of significant differences resulting

from the use of a different measurement focus
and basis of accounting
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2. Condensed Comparative Data

= Condensed government-wide financial
statements
« Two years of data

= |f presenting comparative basic financial
statements
* Three years of data

= May use charts and graphs to supplement
the required presentation, but not as a
substitute
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3. Overall Analysis

= Reasons for major changes in financial
position and results of operations for

 Governmental activities
* Business-type activities

= Economic factors that affected results of
operations

= Emphasis on the current period
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4. Fund Analysis (Individual Major Funds)

= Reasons for change

= Restrictions, commitments, or other
limitations that affect future use
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5. Budgetary Variations (General Fund Only)

= Reasons for significant variations
 Original vs. final amended budget
* Final amended budget vs. actual

= Currently known reasons for variations that
are expected to have a significant effect on

* Future service levels
* Liquidity
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6. Capital Asset and Long-term
Debt Activity

164

Significant activity involving capital assets and
long-term debt

Examples
« Commitments for capital expenditures
« Changes in credit ratings

« Debt limitations that could affect financing or
service levels

« Summary information, with reference to
details in the notes
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/. Infrastructure (Modified Approach)

= Significant changes in condition levels
= Current vs. targeted condition levels

= Significant disparity in the current period
between maintenance/preservation
estimated to be necessary and actual
amounts spent
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8. Other Potentially Significant Matters

= Currently known facts, decisions, or
conditions expected to have a significant
effect
« Award of a major grant
 Settlement of a significant lawsuit
« Adoption of an increase in the sales tax rate
 Approval of an increase in college tuition
« Major change in property tax base
« Signed agreement to locate a new plant within the

jurisdiction

* Signing of new labor contract with union employees



Question 1
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What is the independent auditor’s responsibility for
MD&A?

A. Provide an opinion regarding fair presentation

B. Read and assess for consistency with financial
statements

C. Conduct certain limited procedures



Question 2
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One of the key contributions of an MD&A Is to
allow management to provide a subjective
assessment of the government’s finances.

A. True
B. False



Question 3
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Governments may use charts and graphs to
supplement or replace condensed comparative

data in MD&A.
A. True
B. False



Question 4
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Analysis, strictly speaking, focuses on providing an
answer to which of the following questions?

A. Why?
B. What?
C. How?
D. All of the above



Question 5
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Analysis of budgetary variations should focus on
A. Original budget vs. final amended budget

B. Final amended budget vs. actual

C. EitherAorB

D. BothAand B



Question 6
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Analysis of budgetary variations should focus on
A.
B.
C.

-

The general fund
Major special revenue funds

All governmental funds with legally adopted
annual budgets

. BothAand B
. All of the above
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Question 7

Which of the following might properly be
addressed in MD&A?

A. A potential grant

B. A planned rate increase

C. The settlement of a lawsuit
D. All of the above

E. None of the above
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Question 8

In the MD&A, a government may

A. Address topics not specifically prescribed for
inclusion in MD&A

B. Provide additional detail on topics prescribed
for inclusion in MD&A

Both A and B
. Neither A nor B

0 O



Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (SSAP) and Notes to the
Financial Statements

GB Government Finance Officers Association



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(SSAP)



P
Need

= Specialized environment

= Alternatives under generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP)

= Application of professional judgment
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Presentation Options

= Precedes all other disclosures

« Separate section preceding the notes to the
financial statements, or

* First of the notes to the financial statements



®
Practical Application
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= Disclose

 Variations of GAAP unique to state and local
governments

« Selection of an accounting treatment from
among several GAAP alternatives

* Application of GAAP in an unusual or
Innovative manner
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Discretely Presented Component Units

= [nformation included only if essential to the fair
presentation of the financial statements of the
financial reporting entity

- Evaluated based on the nature of the relationship
between the discretely presented component unit and
the primary government

= [f included, clearly distinguishable from similar
iInformation provided for the primary
government



SSAP Specific Disclosures



® Description of Government-wide
Financial Statements*

= Essentlal contents

« Mention that fiduciary funds and fiduciary-type
component units are not included

*Not required if there are no fiduciary funds or fiduciary-
type component units



G@ 183

Component Units and their Relationship

= Essential contents

« Describe each unit and its relationship to the primary
government

« |dentify the specific criteria used as a basis for
Incorporating each unit

« Explain whether the data for a given unit were blended or
discretely presented

 Indicate how to obtain each component unit’'s separately
Issued financial statements

« If it is the component unit of another government
|dentify primary government
Explain relationship to primary government



®

Basis of Presentation: Government-wide
Financial Statements

184

= Essential contents

« Governmental and business-type activities,
major component units

o Explain how data from the fund financial
statements are incorporated into either
governmental activities or business-type activities,
and

o ldentify major discretely presented component
units and indicate where information on individual
units can be found within the basic financial
statements
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Basis of Presentation: Government-wide
Financial Statements (cont.)

= Essential contents (cont.)

 Policy for eliminating internal activity

o Explain which elements of internal activity have been
eliminated from the government-wide statement of
activities and which have been retained

 Effect of component units with differing fiscal
year-ends

o ldentify any difference in fiscal years, and

o Describe the effect of the difference on amounts
reported for the period



® Basis of Presentation: Fund Financial
Statements

= Major and nonmajor governmental and
enterprise funds; internal service funds
and fiduciary funds by fund type

* |dentify each of the fund types used in the
fund financial statements

* |Indicate the fund type for each of the major
funds



® Basis of Presentation: Fund Financial
Statements (cont.)

= Descriptions of activities accounted for in
the major funds, internal service fund
type, and fiduciary fund types

* Provide at least a generic description of the
activities of the general fund
* Provide a specific description of the activities

of
o Each major fund, other than the general fund, and

o Each fund-type column



® Basis of Presentation: Fund Financial
Statements (cont.)

= Interfund eliminations in fund financial
statements not apparent from headings

 Disclose the elimination of internal balances and
transfers between governmental funds or
between enterprise funds, If a separate
eliminations column is not presented in the fund
financial statements



®
Basis of Accounting

= Accrual — government-wide financial
statements

* Indicate that the accrual basis of accounting is used
for the government-wide financial statements

« Explain how revenues and expenses are recognized
using the accrual basis of accounting



®
Basis of Accounting (cont.)

= Modified accrual — governmental fund
financial statements, including the length of
time used to define available for purposes of
revenue recognition

* Indicate that the modified accrual basis of accounting is
used for governmental fund financial statements

« Explain how revenues and expenditures are recognized
using the modified accrual basis of accounting

* Disclose the availability period used for revenue
recognition



®
Basis of Accounting (cont.)

= Accrual — proprietary and fiduciary fund

Statements

* Indicate that the accrual basis of accounting is used
for proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements
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®
Budgetary Data

= Budgetary basis of accounting

* Describe the budgetary basis of accounting (if other than
GAAP) and how it differs from GAAP

= EXxcess of expenditures over appropriations

* Disclose any excess of expenditures over appropriations in
the general fund and individual major special revenue
funds, for which an annual (or biennial) budget is legally

adopted (if not otherwise visible)
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Elements of the Statement of Net Position

= Definition of cash and cash equivalents

* |f the statement of cash flows focuses on both
cash and cash equivalents, provide the
definition used for cash equivalents

= Disclosure of valuation bases

« Describe the methods used to value different
types of assets (i.e. inventory and prepaids)



®

Elements of the Statement of Net
Position (cont.)

194

Capitalization policy, estimated useful

lives of capital assets

» Describe the government’s policy for capitalizing
assets

» Describe the government’s policy for estimating the
useful lives of capital assets for purposes of
calculating depreciation expense

* |dentify the method used to calculate depreciation
expense



B Elements of the Statement of
Net Position (cont.)

= Description of the modified approach for
reporting infrastructure assets (if used)

» Describe the modified approach

= Explain deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources, If presented



B Elements of the Statement of
Net Position (cont.)

= Significant or unusual accounting
treatment for material account balances

or transactions

« Describe any unusual or innovative accounting
treatments

« Describe any accounting treatment that is especially
significant because of unusual circumstances



B Elements of the Statement of
Net Position (cont.)

= Policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when
an expense Is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net
position is available

» Describe the flow assumption used for restricted
net position v. unrestricted net position



B Elements of the Fund Financial
Statements

= Policy regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when
expenditures are incurred in governmental
funds for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted fund balance are available

= Policy for applying the various components
of unrestricted fund balance, I.e. committed,
assigned and unassigned

* Describe the flow assumption




B Elements of the Fund Financial
Statements (cont.)

= Fund balance disclosures

* The government’s highest level of decision-
making authority

* The formal action required to commit fund
balance and remove the commitment

* The body or official authorized to assign
amounts to a specific purpose

* The policy used to authorize the assignment
of resources
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Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

= Types of transactions included in program
revenues in the government-wide
statement of net position

» Describe the specific revenues classified as
program revenues



201

© Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses
(cont.)

= Policy for allocating indirect expense to
functions in the government-wide

statement of activities

* Mention if indirect costs are reported as a functional
expense as the result of an administrative cost
recovery element built into a charge for centralized
services

- Mention how indirect costs have been allocated to

functions or programs if indirect costs have been
allocated in a separate column
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© Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses
(cont.)

= Unusual or significant accounting policy
for material revenues, expenditures, and
expenses

» Describe any unusual or innovative
accounting treatments

» Describe any accounting treatment that is
especially significant because of unusual
circumstances
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© Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses
(cont.)

= Property tax revenue recognition

* |Indicate the lien dates, levy dates, due dates,
and the collection dates

* Indicate the length of the availability period
used for property taxes, if it is in excess of 60
days, and the unusual circumstances that
justify its use
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© Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses
(cont.)

= Vacation, sick leave, and other
compensated absences

« Mention if employees are reimbursed for
unused sick leave upon retirement, or if
unused sick leave is treated as additional
service time in the calculation of
postemployment benefits
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© Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses
(cont.)

= Policy for defining operating revenues and
operating expenses In proprietary fund
statements of revenues, expenses, and
changes in fund net position

* Provide definition used to distinguish
operating revenues from nonoperating
revenues



Question 1
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Which of the following must be described in the
SSAP?

A.
B.
C.

[T

The selection among GAAP alternatives
The application of professional judgment

Specialized practices characteristic of the
environment

. All of the above
. Both (A) and (C)



Question 2
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The description of the financial reporting entity

should provide a generic description of the criteria
used to identify component units.

A. True
B. False



Question 3
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For which of the following columns may it be
necessary to provide description of the
specific activities reported in the column?

A.

Major fund columns

B. Fund-type columns
C.
D
E

Nonmajor fund columns

. All of the above
. Both (A) and (B)



Question 4
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Which of the following should be disclosed for
property taxes?

A.
B.
C.

_evy date
Due date

Revenues related to prior years recognized In
the current year

. All the above
. Both (A) and (B)




B |
Question 5

Which of the following is a required disclosure for
governmental funds?

A. Flow assumption for restricted fund balance v.
unrestricted components of fund balance

B. Flow assumption within the unrestricted
components of fund balance

C. Both (A) and (B)



Notes to the Financial
Statements



P
What needs to be disclosed?

= Policies underlying the amounts displayed in
the financial statements
« Summary of significant accounting policies (SSAP —
already discussed)
 Additional detail or explanations concerning amounts
displayed
 Additional information on items that are not displayed

because they do not meet the criteria for recognition
(i.e. can’t be measured with sufficient reliability)
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Negative Disclosure

= Normally to be avoided

« Areader may presume that if a disclosure is
missing it is not relevant
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Limitations on Disclosure

= Notes must always

« Have a clear and demonstrable relationship to
iInformation in the financial statements

* Be essential to a user’s understanding of the financial
statements
= Notes should not include

» Subjective assessments of the effects of reported
items on future financial position

* Predictions about the effects of future events on
future financial position



GB 215
Display v. Disclosure

= Notes are never a substitute for display



®

216

Discretely Presented Component Units

Only If essential to the fair presentation of the

reporting entity’s financial statements

* Nature of the component unit’'s relationship with the
primary government

Application of materiality

« Quantitative materiality

« Qualitative materiality

If included, distinguish from similar information
provided for the primary government



Other Detailled Note Disclosures
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Detalls of a Reconciliation

= Required If a reconciling item

« Combines several similar balances or
transactions

* Involves netting



G@ 219

Example 1
= Reconciling item that combines similar
balances

adding general long-term liabilities not due and payable in the current period  $780
= Detall
Bonds payable $700
Compensated absences 50
Claims and judgments 30

Effect of adding general long-term liabilities not
Due and payable in the current period $780



®
Example 2

= Reconclling item that nets items

Reporting annual depreciation expense instead of expenditures for capital outlays: $1,500

= Detall
Capitalized expenditures $2,000
Depreciation expense 200

Net effect of reporting depreciation expense rather
than expenditures for capital outlays $1,500



®
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Stewardship, Compliance, and
Accountability

= Violations of legal or contractual
provisions

 Nature
e Action taken

= Deficits in iIndividual funds
* |f not displayed
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Other Disclosures

= Accounting changes
* Prior period adjustments
« Changes in accounting principles
« Changes in estimate
« Changes in entity

= Bankruptcies
= (Going-concern considerations




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds

= Assets and deferred outflows of resources
« Cash deposits with financial institutions
* |nvestments
 Derivative instruments
* Reverse repurchase agreements
Securities lending transactions
Recelvable balances
Capital assets




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)

= Assets and deferred outflows of resources
(cont.)

 Collections
* Impairments and insurance recoveries

« Sponsor disclosures for external investment
D00Is

 Lease recelvables
 Deferred outflows of resources




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)

= Liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources
- Payable balances
« Pension plan obligations and OPEB
* Termination benefits

Construction and other significant
commitments

Claims and judgments




Detailled Notes on Activities and

—

unds (cont.)

226

Liabilities anc

deferred inflows of

resources (cont.)
* Lease obligations

Short-term debt and liquidity

* Long-term debt

 Landfill closure and postclosure care
 Pollution remediation obligations

» Deferred inflows of resources




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)

= Net position
« Amounts restricted pursuant to enabling
legislation
= Fund balance

 Detalls of restricted, committed, and assigned
fund balances

 Stabilization arrangements




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)

= Revenues and expenditures/expenses
 Discounts and allowances

* Interest expense included in direct expense

 Future revenues that have been sold

* On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and
salaries




®  Detailed Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)

= Revenues and expenditures/expenses
(cont.)
» Transactions that would be reported as

special items, had they been within the control
of management

* Significant transactions involving major
discretely presented component units

* Transactions not reported because they are
not measurable




®

Detailled Notes on Activities
and Funds (cont.)
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Revenues and expenditures/expenses
(cont.)

* Foreign currency transactions
 Nonmonetary transactions

« Contracts to perform research and
development

« Service concession arrangements
* Donor-restricted endowments
 Interfund transfers



Other
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Segment information for enterprise funds

Individual major discretely presented
component unit disclosures

The nature of the primary government’s
accountabillity for related organizations

Joint ventures and jointly governed
organizations



Other (cont.)

232

Related-party transactions

Summary disclosure of significant contingencies

* Loss contingencies
« Contingent liability for debt
« Gain contingencies

Significant effects of subsequent events



B |
Question 1

Which of the following may be included in the
notes the financial statements?

A. Assessments concerning the effect of reported
iInformation on future financial position

B. Predictions concerning the effect of future
iInformation on future financial position

Both (A) and (B)
. Neither (A) nor (B)

eNe



B |
Question 2

To be Iincluded In the notes to the financial
statements, information should

A. Have a clear and demonstrable relationship to
Information in the financial statements

B. Be essential to users’ understanding of the
financial statements

. Both (A) and (B)
. Neither (A) nor (B)

O O



Question 3
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Since the notes to the financial statements
are a part of the basic financial statements,
presentation in the notes may always
substitute for display on the face of the
financial statements.

A. True
B. False



Question 4
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When authoritative standards prescribed a
disclosure that Is not relevant to a
government’s circumstances, the notes
should explain that fact.

A. True
B. False



Question 5
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The requirement to disclose In the notes
deficits in individual funds applies to all
funds.

A. True
B. False



Combining and Individual Fund
Financial Statements

G Government Finance Officers Association




@
cContents

= Combining statements (nonmajor funds

and discretely presented component
units)

= |ndividual fund financial statements and
schedules
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Combining Financial Statements

= Data for individual funds not presented as
such In the basic financial statements

= Purpose: Support related column in basic
financial statements
oNonmajor governmental funds
oNonmajor enterprise funds
oFund-type columns
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Example

= Basic financial statements

Enterprise Funds Internal
Nonmajor Service
Fund 1 Fund 2 Funds Total Funds
$100 $75 $20 $195 $30

= Combining financial statements

Total Nonmajor
Fund 3 Fund 4 Fund 5 Fund 6 Enterprise Funds
$4 $5 $8 $3 $20




G@ 242
Governmental Funds

= Information needed by fund type

Special Revenue Funds  Capital Projects Funds Debt Service Funds Total Nonmajor
Fund1l Fund2 Fund3 Fund4 Fundb5 Fund 6 Fund 7 Governmental Funds
$3 $2 $4 $12 $6 $4 $5 $36

= |f numerous funds
* Sub-combine statements by fund type



@® Format: Complete Sets of Financial
Statements

= Nonmajor governmental funds

- Balance sheet

- Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances

= Nonmajor enterprise funds

- Statement of net position

- Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position

- Statement of cash flows



@® Format: Complete Sets of Financial
Statements (cont.)

= |nternal service funds
« Statement of net position
- Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position
 Statement of cash flows
= Private-purpose trust funds
« Statement of fiduciary net position
« Statement of changes in fiduciary net position

= Pension (and other employee benefits) trust funds

 Statement of fiduciary net position
« Statement of changes in fiduciary net position



B Format: Complete Sets of Financial
Statements (cont.)

= |nvestment trust funds
« Statement of fiduciary net position
- Statement of changes in fiduciary net position

= Custodial funds
« Statement of fiduciary net position
- Statement of changes in fiduciary net position
= Nonmajor discretely presented component units
« Statement of net position
« Statement of activities



P
Format (cont.)

= Cover page for each set of financial

Statements

» Description of the nature and operations of each of
the individual funds or component units

= No reference to the notes to the financial
statements for statements that receive
only in-relation-to audit coverage



@
Individual Fund Statements

= Only for information beyond what is already
presented in the combining statements

- Budgetary comparisons

o Governmental funds other than the general fund and major
special revenue funds with annual (or biennial) appropriated
budgets

o General fund and major special revenue funds if legal level of
control lower than the function/program level

- Comparative data
 Additional detall



®

Component Units

248

Data drawn from the total columns of the
government-wide financial statements in
the component unit’'s separately issued

report

* If a separate report is not issued, the basic
fund financial statements of the component
unit must be included in the financial
subsection of the CAFR



® |
Formaitting

= Same approach as combining statements
« Complete sets of financial statements

« Cover page with a description of the nature
and operations of the individual fund

* No reference to the notes for individual fund
statements that receive only in-relation-to
audit coverage



@
Schedules

250

= Purpose
« Demonstrate legal compliance
« Additional financial information of potential
benefit to financial statement users
= Placed immediately following related
statements

* If not related to statements, in a separate
section at the end of the financial section of

the CAFR



B |
Question 1

Which of the following may be included in
combining statements?

A. Major governmental funds other than the
general fund

B. Nonmajor governmental funds
C.BothAand B



B |
Question 2

Only one combining statement is required
for custodial funds.

A. True
B. False



Question 3
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A reference on the face of the combining
statements to the notes to the financial
statements Is

A. Normally inappropriate
B. Sometimes required
C. BothAand B



Question 4

254

If a combining statement Is presented,
individual fund statements are

A. Always required
B. Never required
C. Sometimes required



Budgetary Reporting

GB Government Finance Officers Association



@
Two Types

= Mandated reporting

« Must always be presented in connection with the basic
financial statements

o Option 1: present as basic financial statement
— “Statement”
— Audited

o Option 2: present as required supplementary information (RSI)
— “Schedule”
— Not audited

= Extended reporting

* Required in Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR)




®
Mandated Reporting

= Scope
« Required for the general fund and major
special revenue funds

 “The minimum is the maximum”

o Exclude

— Other fund types
— Nonmajor special revenue funds



P
Extended Reporting in CAFR

= Scope
* Required for funds that meet each of 3 criteria
1. Governmental fund (v. enterprise fund)

2. Appropriated budget (force of law) v.
“financial plan”

3. Annual (or biennial) v. project-length




®
Contents of Budgetary Reports

= Mandated reporting
 Original budget
* Final amended budget
 Actual (budgetary basis)

= Extended reporting
* Final amended budget
« Actual (budgetary basis)



Level of Detall
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Mandated reporting

« Function or program level

o As In the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances

Extended reporting

* Legal level of control

o The level at which resources cannot be reassigned
without approval




GAAP v. Budget

261

Mandated reporting

- Reconcile the budgetary basis with GAAP if
different

o Either on the face of the comparison or in the
notes

Extended reporting
* No reconciliation required




®

262

Variance Columns (Optional)

Presentation encouraged

* Difference between the final amended budget
and actual amounts
o Almost always presented

Presentation permitted

* Difference between the original budget and the
final amended budget (mandated reporting only)

o Uncommon
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Labeling Variance Columns

= Managerial accounting
- Favorable v. unfavorable

= Problematical in the public sector

* Focus on providing services rather than generating
revenue

o Spending less money than planned is not necessarily a “good
thing” if services suffered as a result

o Collecting more taxes than needed is not necessarily a “good
thing” from the point of view of taxpayers

= Recommendation
* Do not provide a columnar description
* Neutral terminology (e.g., “variance” or “difference”)



Question 1
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A budgetary comparison schedule could be
found as

A. A basic financial statement
B. RSI

C.EitherAorB




B |
Question 2

Mandated budgetary comparisons are
A. Always audited

B. Sometimes audited

C. Never audited



Question 3
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Which of the following would be included In
a mandated budgetary comparison?

A. Major special revenue fund

B. Nonmajor special revenue fund
C.Major debt service fund
D.Nonmajor debt service fund
E.BothAand C



B |
Question 4

Budgetary reporting for enterprise funds Is
A. Always required

B. Sometimes required

C. Never required



Question 5
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Which of the following would be required In
connection with extended reporting?

A. Original budget
B. Variance column

C. Reconcliliation between basis of budgeting
and GAAP

D. All of the above
E. None of the above




Question 6
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What Is the minimum level of detail at which
budgetary comparisons must be presented
In connection with mandated reporting?

A. Function or program level
B. Legal level of control
C.EitherAor B



Required Supplementary
Information (RSI)

G Government Finance Officers Association
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Location

= After the notes to the financial statements

« Exception: Management Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A)



®
Budgetary Comparison

= Generally same guidelines as when
Included In the basic financial statements

= Differences
 Schedule rather than statement

 Related disclosures as notes to RSI rather
than as notes to the financial statements
(except material violation)



®
Budgetary Comparison (cont.)

= Provide reconciliation if basis of budgeting
Is different from GAAP

= Use the budgetary framework for
reporting
* Required even if scope of budgetary

framework is broader than general fund and
major special revenue funds



®

274

Condition Assessments: Modified
Approach

Three most recently completed condition
assessments

* Only one assessment required at date of initial
Implementation of new model

Maintenance and preservation costs
(5 years)

« Estimate of amount needed

« Actual expense (always on GAAP basis)
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® Condition Assessments: Modified
Approach (cont.)

= Notes to RSI
* Basis for condition assessment
« Measurement scale

» Target level

o If changed, effect of change on estimated
maintenance and preservation in period

 Factors that significantly affect trends
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Pensions/OPEB - Single Employers and
Agent Multiple-employers

= Required disclosures

1. Schedule of changes in the net pension/OPEB
liability and related ratios (10 years)

o Reported as of the measurement date

2. Schedule of required contributions (10 years)

o Reported as of the most recent reporting date (fiscal
year-end)
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1. Schedule of Changes in Net
Pension/OPEB Liabllity

= Contents

« Beginning balance

« Specific changes
o Service cost
o Interest on total pension/OPEB liability
o Changes in benefit terms
o Expected v. actual
o Changes in assumptions
o Contributions
o Net investment income
o Benefit payments and refunds
o Administrative expense

« Ending balance



®

1. Schedule of Changes in Net
Pension/OPEB Liability — Related Ratios

278

= Contents
a. Total pension/OPEB liability (TPL/TOPEBL)
b. Fiduciary net position (FNP)
c. Net pension/OPEB liability (NPL/NOPEBL)
[a-b=C]
a. FNP as % of TPL/TOPEBL [b/a]
. Covered payroll (CP)
c. NPL as % of CP [c/e]

This can be a separate schedule, but in practice is combined with
schedule of changes in NPL/NOPEBL
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2. Schedule of Required Contributions

= Required if contribution is
 Actuarially determined

* Not actuarially determined, but statutorily or
contractually required

= Contents
a. Target contribution
Actual contribution
Difference (a — b)
Covered Payroll (CP)
Contributions as % of CP (b/a)

® oo T



® Pensions/OPEB - Cost-sharing
Employers

= Schedule of funding progress (10 years)

a. Employer share of Net Pension/OPEB Liability
(NPL/NOPEBL) As a % and $

Employer share of Covered Payroll (CP)
Employer share of NPL/NOPEBL as % of CP
(a/b)
d. Total Plan Fiduciary Net Position as % of TPL
= Schedule of employer contributions (10 years)
o If statutorily or contractually required
o As of the most recent reporting date



® Pensions/OPEB - Nonemployer
Contributors

= Schedule of funding progress (10 years)

o Nonemployer’s share of NPL/NOPEBL
— As %
—As $

o PNP as % of TPL/TOPEBL

« Schedule of employer contributions (10 years)
o If statutorily or contractually required



GBTotal Pension Liability
Service Cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

‘Differences between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions
Benefit Payments

Net change in total Pension liability
Total Pension Liability - beginning

Total Pension Liability - ending

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer
Contributions-employee
Net investment income

Benefit Payments
Administrative expense

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning

Plan fiduciary net position - ending

Net Pension Liability

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

Covered Payroll

Net pension liability as a percentage of
covered payroll

20X9 20X8 20X7 20X6
$ 75864 S 74276 S 71,157 $ 69,344
216,515 205,038 188,845 174,694
(37,539) (15,211) (3,562) 38,438
- - 61,011 -
(119,434) (112,603) (104,403) (95,376)
135,406 151,500 213,048 187,100
2,853,455 2,701,955 2,488,907 2,301,807

S 2,988,861

S 2,853,455

S 2,701,955

S 2,488,907

$ 79713 $ 86607 S 89,828 $ 91,963
31,451 30,550 29,137 28,547
196,154 (44,099) (16,138) 298,260

(119,434) (112,603) (104,403) (95,376)
(3,365) (3,370) (2,601) (2,757)
184,519 (42,915) (4,177) 320,637
2,052,589 2,095,504 2,099,681 1,779,044

$ 2,237,108 $ 2,052,589 $ 2,095,504 $ 2,099,681

$ 751,753 $ 800,866 $ 606,451 $ 389,226
74.85% 71.93% 77.56% 84.36%

$ 449,296 $ 436,424 S 416,243 S 407,812
167.32% 183.51% 145.70% 95.44%

282



B 20X9 20X8 20X7 20x6 83
" Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost S 19,051 S 18,190 S 16,642 S 16,732
Interest 30,663 27,176 26,061 25,394
‘Changes of benefit terms - - - (36,889)
Differences between expected and actual
experience 8,925 11,845 (18,490) 11,845
Changes of assumptions - - (1,369) -
Benefit Payments (7,899) (7,758) (7,601) (7,425)
Net change in total OPEB liability 50,740 49,453 15,243 9,657
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 432,472 383,019 367,776 358,119
Total OPEB Liability - ending $ 483,212 432,472 383,019 367,776
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer S 22,424 25,255 28,260 24,737
Net investment income 44,215 28,698 32,698 25,691
Benefit Payments (7,899) (7,758) (7,601) (7,425)
Administrative expense (148) (144) (137) (128)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 58,592 46,051 53,220 42,875
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 418,254 372,203 318,983 276,108
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 476,846 418,254 372,203 318,983
Net OPEB Liability S 6,366 14,218 10,816 48,793
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability 98.68% 96.71% 97.18% 86.73%
Covered Payroll S 535,043 524,209 511,884 510,760
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 1.19% 2.71% 2.11% 9.55%
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Information on Contributions: Actuarially
Determined Contribution

20X9 20X8 20X7 20X6
Actuarially determined contribution S 79713 S 86607 S 89,828 S 91,963
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution S 79,713 S 86,607 S 89,828 S 91,963
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ S - S S ;
Covered payroll S 449,293 S 436,424 S 416,243 S 407,812

Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll 17.74% 19.84% 21.58% 22.55%



45
Notes to RSI

= Significant methods and assumptions for
actuarially determined contribution (if
applicable)

= Factors that significantly affect trends
* No restatement of information from prior years



@ |
Risk Pools

= Revenues and claim development
* 10 years of data

* Only required if no separate report issued for
the pool

o How to obtain separately issued report



Statistical Section

GB Government Finance Officers Association



@
Focus of Statistical Section

= Economic condition
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® Financial Position v. Economic
Condition

= Financial position

 [Assets + deferred outflows of resources] —
[liabilities + deferred inflows of resources] =
net position

= Economic condition

 Factors that indicate that today’s net position
may improve or deteriorate in the future




Five Objectives
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= Provid
= Provid
= Provid

= Provic

e Information on financial trends

e Information on revenue capacity
e Information on debt capacity

e demographic and economic

Information

= Provide operating information
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Financial Trends

= Data extracted from the government-wide
financial statements (10 years)
* Net position
« Changes in net position




Net Position
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Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total:
Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total:
Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total:



Restricted

Resmcted

Restricted
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N t P . t- ( I )
Fiszal Year
2016 2015 2014 H3 2012 2H1 20 2003 2008 2007
Govermnmental actvities
Met investment in capital assets 11322388 % 11561678 F B44273E F 0400813 5§ 0083284 5 10223827 5 10047831 9350118 § B8BBE433 5 B 3BDAID
L 1,7H3,BOS 1,376,838 1,175,786 1,270,172 1,087,913 DE5, 4048 &t 123 B45 844 1,537,835 1,167 0&5
Lnrestricted 185,063 531 1,832,147 1,525,828 1,445,834 1,188,370 1,143,425 127857 1,237,784 1,083,110
Total governmental activities net position § 132311357 % 13472621 § 12260881 % 12276413 § 12198831 § 127876806 § 12185520 11483537 § 11672160 § 10,660,805
Business-type activites
Mt investment in capital assets 5 B3T4pd8 § BEE1T40 3 DOOO4B0 3 9093354 5 0405812 § 0589155 § 9407640 9362800 3 QG0DEID F  BA401.081
L 162,001 162,001 162,001 182,001 - - - - - -
Unrestricted 1,203,821 90,388 985,785 B4 72 02,225 401,138 M7 B0 267 (67 50:3) {566, 216)
Total business-type actvities net position § D740PBE § DA13B3E % 10137266 5 10110847 5 10107837 § Q470234 § 97R4E03 0453160 § DEX IS F 7036765
Prirrary govemment
Mt investment in capital assats $ 10867385 § 20243428 % 1845218 5 18574407 § 10033806 § 18702082 § 19485561 187x2015 § 18508275 § 16872611
1,55, A0S 1,538 B2 1337767 1432173 1,087,913 25,408 o 123 B45 244 1,537 835 1,167 085
Linrestricted 1,300,054 1,503,862 2,587 832 2,380,420 2,147,850 1,589,508 1,400,543 1,268,842 1,150,284 627 BR4
Total primary government net position § 23052345 § 23286250 % XDABTO4V %5 22337060 5 223088 § 22357000 5 21040332 5 20033703 5 21184406 § 18507570




®
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Changes Iin Net Position

Expenses:
Governmental activities:
By function/program?
Business-type activities:
By identifiable activities
Total - primary government
Program revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services (by function for the most significant items)
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Business-type activities:
Charges for services (by function for the most significant items)
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total - primary government
Net (expense) revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total - primary government

General revenues and other changes in net position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total - primary government
Total change in net position
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total - primary government



Name of Govermment
Changes in Net Position 295
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government 31,887,579 $ 28,317,571 $ 24,734,046 $ 23,825,828 $ 22,360,541
Fublic safety 63,309,737 59,427,149 55,970,449 55,015,513 52,051,097
Highways and streets 37,109,026 29,529,059 27,742,706 24 544,783 23,399,935
Sanitation 10,571,560 9,914,570 10,606,726 10,102,997 9,451,147
Culture and recreation 24,711,598 27,023,265 26,660,621 25,404,083 24 408,633
Interest 3,232,134 2,838,043 2,550,891 2,394,351 2,589,850
Total Governumental Activities 170,821,634 157,049,658 148,265,438 141,287,595 134,261,243
Business-ty pe Activity-
Water 8,447 498 8,356,237 7,625,604 7038,281 7.060,813
Transit 5,974,954 5,762,334 5,604,867 5382,817 5,505,039
Total Business-type Activities 14,422,382 14,118571 13,230471 12,421,098 12,565,852
Total Expenses 185,244,016 $ 171,168,229 $ 161,495,909 $ 153,708,693 $ 146,827,095
Program Revenues
Governumental Activities:
Charges for services
General government 7,677,948 $ 7.841,202 $ 6,838,367 $ 6,819,679 $ 6380,477
Public safety 12,377,439 11,548,967 10,635,881 10,109,547 9,645,217
Highways and streets 9,301,285 8,974,640 8879,220 8,849,489 8496,213
Sanitation 2,682,219 2,212,837 2,121,670 1,919,971 1,725,498
Culture and recreation 3,824,583 3,564,183 3,108,349 3,099,854 2,627,490
Operating grants and contributions 14,019870 12,827,195 8,982,551 8,222,199 8,085,497
Capital grants and contributions 7.802,833 5,876,009 3,602,599 3,334,484 2,923,455
Total Governmental Activities 57,686,177 52,845,033 44 168,637 42 355,292 39,883,847
Business-type Activity-
Charges for services
Water 9.457,623 8,535,444 7836344 6,560,748 5946,111
Transit 930,131 890,818 876,150 863,805 842,354
Operating grants and contributions 401,441 270,202 54,123 - 203,324
Capital grants and contributions 1,174,511 1,251,689 515,564 644,220 549,912
Total Business-type Activity 11,963,706 10,948,155 9,282,181 8,068,773 7.541,701
Total Programn Revenues $ 69,649,885 $ 63,793,186 $ 53,450818 $ 50,423,995 $ 47 425,548
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Govemmental Activities $  (113135457) $  (104204,625) & (104,096,801)  $ (98.932,373) % (94,377,396)
Business-type Activity (2,458,676) (3,170,418) (3,948,290) (4352,325) (5,024,151)
Total Net Experse $  (115594,133) §  (107,375043) & (108,045001) & (103,284,608) § (99,401,547)




Seneral Rewvenues

Governimental Activities:

Property Taxes

SalesTax

Franchisetaxes
Intergovernmental-unrestricted
Unrestricted investmentearnings
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Mizcellaneous

Transfersinjfout

Special ltem

Tatal general revenues, transfers, and special item

Business-type Activity-
Unrestricted investiment earnings
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous
Transfersinjfout

Total Business-type activities

Total primary government

Change in INetPosition

Gowvernmental Activities
Business-type Activity
Taotal Change in et

Position

Name of Government

Changes in Net Position (continued)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

45,060,105 43,705,394 41,562,032 5 40,677,976 $ 39,560,991

44 368,865 45 962,388 44 853,309 42 886,257 41,429,781
1,637,832 1,624,322 1,393,945 1,490,316 1,373,286
1,753,982 1,692,600 11,129,981 10,448,692 9,298,195
3,440,745 3402933 2,603,890 2,128,736 1,982,331

22,276 - - - -

2,322 867 379943232 9,088,610 B373620 3,086,187
(3,728,209 (3,604,638) (4,283,068) (3,922,228) (4,324,124)
94,778,164 96,482,421 106,348,699 99,083,369 92,477,647
264,891 156,928 172,708 163,298 156,366

- 261,749 112,033 201,767 227,227

3,728,209 2,604,638 4,283 068 3,922228 4324124
2,992100 4 023,315 4 567,809 4,287,293 4 707,717

$ 98,771,264 % 100,505,736 % 110,916,508 % 103,370,662 % 97,185,264
$ (18,357,293 % (7,722,204) % 2,251,898 % 150,996 % (1,899,749
1,534424 A52.897 619519 (65,032 (316,434)
] (16,822,869) 3 (6,869,307) 3 2,871,417 3 85,964 3 (2,216,183)
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Financial Trends

Data extracted from the governmental fund
financial statements (10 years)

* Fund balances
« Changes in fund balances
o Ratio - Debt service/noncapital expenditures

— Formula:

Principal + interest/(total expenditures —
capitalized expenditures)
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Flgcal Yoar
ag i 214 13 2 a1 2010 a1 2008 20T
Genaral fund
Resenied - - - - 5 - 5 - - . - -
Urregerved - - - - - - 635,795 743,540 855,012 BST.425
Nonspendabie 5,000 11,483 5,857 5,905 3,504 £.583 - - - -
Restried 598
Unassigned 1,096,541 1,370,723 1,142,583 DE3M1 B4 752,510 - -
Total general fund 5 1097430 § 1387006 5 149440 5 1000M4F 5 FOPO% § 70403 £85,795 TEIR40 5 BEADMD BE7.428
All other govemmesntal funds
Reserved 5 -3 -3 -5 S T - 128 564 1268854 5 128984 128,364
Unresenved reporiad I - - - - - -
Spactal revenue funds - - - - - - 583,367 402,345 504,837 73657
Dbk senice funds - - - - - - 5,990 g 172,137 1537
Capital project funds - - - - - - 376,509 756,398 710016 380 560
Parmanent funds - - - - - - 30,063 22,575 17.775 12375
Nonspendabie 131,554 126,554 128,564 128864 126,854 128,864
Restided 1,537 535 1,247,974 1,038,198 1132315 013448 576,523
Commitied - - - - - -
Assigned 24,148 5,205 8734 8883 25601 301,287
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total all ofer govemmental funds § 1793307 § 1396043 § 1475795 5 1270472 51DS913 5 100774 5 1204793 § 1312407 § 1533620 § 1270046
Total generd and 3l other govemmental 3 BEET3E 5 ToE240 § 230503 § 2070418 510600540 §  IPORJ6T § 1 PO91500 §  J0G60% § ZADIEdl §  2ii7

Hote:

Permanent Funds were estabilshed at fhe fme the Cly impiemented GASE 34
(1) 2011 Is the first year of Implementation of GASE 54




®
Changes in Fund Balances

= 10 years of data

Revenues
[By source]
Expenditures
[By function]
[By component for debt service]
Other financing sources (uses)
[By type]
Other changes in fund balances
[By type]

Total changes in fund balances

= Ratio of debt service to noncapital expenditures

Principal + interest

Total expenditures — capitalized expenditures



300

Changes in Fund Balances (example)

2016 2015 2014
RevBNuUEEs
Taxes 5 1835132 3 1,743,655 3 1657424
Intergovammenial revenuss
Faderal 1121 27, 102 102,423
Siae 1,375,729 2,030,118 1,101 536
Licenses and p=milts 13,170 17,259 14,751
Chamges for senvices Z35,7540 S0, 2T 285,088
Fines 55,255 103,536 50,5381
Speclal assessment - - -
Donatbons 55,257 51,283 160,597
Miscalanaous 206,085 134,028 223,605
Tolal revenues 3,8EE 520 4,411,258 3,681,730
Expendliures
Curmrent
Eaneral governimet 726975 559,205 673,435
Pubilc safely 1,352.254 1,236,274 1,266,557
Pubilc works and sireets 677157 459,516 456,412
Cuiure and recreafion 473,525 420,145 417,260
D= servics
Principal 127,435 126,270 130,561
(B 1 E==h 133,949 105,039 115,315
Capial Outiay 255, 735 S56, 994 476,981
Tiotal expendiunes 3,731,023 3,968,245 3,546,921
REvenues over [under) expendiines 157497 443,043 134 B18
Othar Nnacing Sources [Waea)
Bondnoie processs - - -
Transfers in 712911 271,510 261,200
Transfars out {759,911) {271,510) {361,200
Todal other inancing SOWCES [USEE) (40, 000) - (B0, DO
Metl changes In fund balances 1] 117,497 F 423013 F 34,6818 F

Dot senilce a5 3 pencaniage of
noncapiial expendiuras 6.6% T.B% 5.0%




G@ 301

Information on Revenue Capacity

= Most significant “own source” revenue

= Exclude
* Intergovernmental aid
 Shared revenue

= 4 schedules
1. Information on revenue base
2. Information on revenue rates
3. Information on principal revenue payers
4

nformation on property tax levies and collections
(if property taxes are significant own-source
revenue)
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1. Information on Revenue Base

= 10 years of data
- Each major component of the revenue base
* The total direct rate applied to that base



Revenue Base (example)
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MName of Government

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxable
Total Assessed Value
Fiscal Year One-Three Condo, Less Taxable as a Percentage of Estimated Total
Ended Family Co-ops, Tax-Exempt Assessed Estimated Actual Direct
June 30 Residences Apartments Commercial Property Value Actual Value Taxable Value Rate

2022 121,005,719 72,739,746 248,431 6852 151,987,770 290,189,377 2.75% 10,552, 340,982 147 48
2021 120,796,989 72,115,083 253,645,541 156,658,202 289,902,411 2.75% 10,541,905,855 141.93
2020 120,349,269 72,309,698 258,470,800 154,975,203 296,154,564 3.24% 9,140,572,963 132.64
2019 119,440,434 66,388,333 268,331,520 151,904,088 302,256,199 3.54% 8,538,310,706 12305
2018 118,563, 64 0d, 079,053 275,369,362 153,931,776 304,680,309 3.82% 7.975,924,319 117.61
2017 117,932,903 64,189,864 282,257,581 147,275,814 317,104,534 1.45% 7,125,944, 584 104.31
2016 117,927,223 63,724,104 283,224 518 145,441,665 319,434,180 471% f, 782,042,038 u7.00
2015 116,736,008 03,051,429 283,447 3493 145,410,174 315,424,656 6.35% 5,014.561,512 91.48
2014 115,835,003 03,825,309 282,725,048 145,141,310 317,044 650 709% 4.471,715,797 91.48
2013 110,803,152 53,130,144 152,440,740 NfA (1) 316,074,036 7.45% 4,242 6(4,510 89.15
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2. Information on Revenue Rates

= 10 years of data
* Individual direct rates
 Total direct rate
« Rates of overlapping governments
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Revenue Rates (example)

Name of Government
Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Yeats

Overlapping Rates
Name of Government (1) County
Debt Total Refuse Tatal
Fiscal Operating Library Service Direct School Sewer Disposal Total Direct and
Year Millage Millage Millage Rate District County Districts District County Overlapping
022§ 10319 $ 1770 $ 2659 14748 ¢ 505.01 $ 102.80 $ 14.51(2) $ 982 $ 127132 $ 777.61(2)
17.53(3) 130.15(5) 780.63(3)
2021 141.93 - - 141.93 474.62 93122 12.96(2) 10.15 116.33(2) 732.86(2)
15.75(3) 119.12(5) 735.67(3)
2020 132.64 - - 152.64 443.77 88.89 10.32(2) 10.24 109.45(2) 685.86(2)
13.29(3) 112.42(3) H688.83(3)
2019 123.05 - - 123.05 410.45 86.10 9.82(2) 10.28 106.20(2) 639.70(2)

12.43(3) 108.81(3) 642.31(3)
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3. Information on Principal Revenue Payers

= Current year/9 years prior

 Ten principal revenue payers (or as many as
needed to account for at least 50 percent of
payments)

« Amount paid/due from each and percentage
of total
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Name of Government
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
2022 2013
Percentage Percentage
Taxable of Total Taxable of Total
Azsezaed Assessed Asseszed Aszsezsed
Bank Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
1 Mall Management Company, LF $£11,079 450 1 3.82% $13,253,400 2 4.19%
2 Electric Power Company 10,563,972 2 Jed 13,326,544 1 4232
3 Riverrun Galleria 8,100,000 3 279
4 4537 Kostner Property LLC 4,270,000 4 147
b EFKD Realty Associates, LF 4,010,000 5 1.35 4,539,200 9 153
6 Willowbrook Plaza 3,394 800 L+ 117
7 Weston Group, Inc 3,275,000 7 113
8 American Telephone & Telegraph 3,125 000 3 1.08 7,939 492 0 251
g Imitech, LLC 2,200,000 9 0.76
10 Verizon, Inc. 2,054,689 10 0.72
BLEK Life Ins. Co. 10,350,000 3 327
Cadillac MMall 8,610,000 4 272
IBM 7,995 500 5 283
Morthern Properties 6,222,000 7 2.06
Westhaven One 6,370,000 8 202
State Telephone Company 3,989.894 10 126
$ 52102911 2351% 83,196,030 32.75%
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4. Information on Property Taxes

= Levies and collections (10 years)
 Collected initially
o Amount and percentage

* Collected to date
o Amount and percentage



® Property Tax Levies and Collections

(examples)
= |dentify levy based on year it was intended to
finance
Collected in First Period Collections in Total Collections

Levy  Amount  Percentage SubsequentPeriods Amount Percentage
$6,881 $6,841 99.4% $22 $6,863 99.7%

= Modification for tax appeals

Collected in First Period Total Collections
Original Adjusted Percentage of Collected in Percentage of

Levy Adjustments Levy Amount Original Levy Subsequent Periods Amount Adjusted Levy
$6,881 $119 $7,000  $6,841 99.4% $22 $6,863 98%




®
Debt Capacity Schedules

= 5 schedules
1. Ratios of outstanding debt
2. Ratios of general bonded debt

3. Information about direct and overlapping
debt

4. Information about debt limitations

5. Information about pledged revenue
coverage
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1. Outstanding Debt

= 10 year sc
= Debt related

nedule
to governmental activities (by type)

= Debt relatec
= Total debt—
= Ratio of tota
= Ratio of tota

to business-type activities (by type)
orimary government

outstanding debt/personal income
debt per capita




Outstanding Debt (exam

Name of Government
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

ple)

312

General Special General Total Debt
Fiscal Obligation Capital Assessment Obligation Outstanding Percentage of per
Year Bonds (1) Leases Bonds (1) Bonds Debt Personal Income (2) Population (3) Capita

Business-type
Governmental Activities: Activities

2022 $ 73,522,878 5 146,042 4,691,000 § 10,042,137 & B8402,057 4.92% 57468 1,538
201 77,491,180 - - 11,069,820 77,491,180 4.32% 57,100 1,357
2020 60,529,569 - - 11,021,931 60,529,569 334% 57,079 1,060
2me 57,905,557 - - 9,154,143 57,905,557 3.36% 56,972 1,016
208 60,593,966 - - 7,189,734 60,593,966 3.61% 57,250 1,058
2amz 60,379,961 - - 5,919,739 60,379,961 3.79% 56,825 1,063
M6 57,501,584 - - 5,136,116 57,501,584 3.77% 56,216 1,023
M5 55,279,362 - - 4,458,149 55,279,362 3.85% 55,604 993
2014 54,067,251 - - 3,669,056 54,067,251 3.93% 54,297 996
2m3 60,371,744 - - 2,880,209 60,371,744 4.68% 53,307 1,133

-Includes ratio of total outstanding debt to personal income and ratio of total
outstanding debt per capita



®

2. General Bonded Debt

313

Debt that is backed, in whole or in part, by
resources of the general government, even if the
debt is properly reported as debt of an enterprise
fund

10 years

« By type and in total

- Ratio of general bonded debt/estimated actual value of
taxable property

- Ratio of general bonded debt per capita

If have resources that are externally restricted for
debt repayment, modify presentation to include
them
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General Bonded Debt (example)

Name of Government
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage of

Estimated
Fiscal General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable
Year Ended Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per

June 30 Bonds (1) Service Fund (2) Total Property (3) Capita (4)
2022 $83,565,015 $525,000 $83,040,015 0.79% $1,445
2021 88,561,000 800,000 87,761,000 0.83% 1,537
2020 72,583,941 650,000 71,933,941 0.79% 1,260
2019 71,383,802 580,000 70,803,802 0.83% 1,243
2018 70,048,308 620,000 69,428,308 0.87% 1,213
2017 68,837,303 600,000 68,237,303 0.96% 1,201
2016 58,716,162 425,000 58,291,162 0.86% 1,037
2015 56,493,940 415,000 56,078,940 1.12% 1,007
2014 55,281,829 325,000 54,956,829 1.23% 1,012

2013 69,826,086 650,000 69,176,086 1.63% 1,298



®
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3. Direct and Overlapping Debt

Current year only

Related to governmental activities only

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Government Unit:

School District
County

Subtotal, overlapping debt
MName of Government direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Name of Government

As of June 30, 2022

Estimated Amount
Debt Percentage Applicable to
Outstanding Applicable Primary Government
S 100,170,000 100.00% $100,170,000
708,325,004 5.19% 36,796,153
136,966,153
73,522,878
$210,489,031




P
4. Debt Limitations

= Current year
oCalculation of the legal debt margin

= Ten years of data

oAmount of the legal debt margin, and

oRatio - Either
— Legal debt margin/legal debt limit
— Qutstanding debt/legal debt limit
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Calculation of Legal Debt Margin (example)

Name of Government
Legal Debt Margin Information

June 30, 2022

Taxable Ascessed Estimated
Fiscal Total Taxable WValue as a Percentage of Actual
Year Aszcessed Value Eztimated Actual Value Taxable Value
2022 % 290,189 377 2.75% $10,552,340 982
2021 289902411 2.75% 10,541 905 835
2020 296,154 56d 3.24% 9.140,572,963
2019 302,256,199 3.54% 5,538,310,706
2018 304,680,309 3.82% 7,975,924 319

Total Five Year Valuation
Five Year Average Full Valuation of Taxable Eeal Property
Constitutional Debt Limit (7% of Average Full Valuation)
Ontstanding General Obligation Indebitness as of June 30, 2022
Governmental Activities - General Obligation Debt
Business-type Activities - General Obligation Debt
Governmental Activities - Short-term Debt - Bond Anticipation Notes
Business-type Activities - Short-term Debt - Bond Anticipation Notes
Met Indebiness subject to debt limit
Met debt contracting margin

Percentage of net debt contracting margin available

Percentage of net debt contracting power exhausted

S46 740 054 825

$5.349 510,965

S654 486 768

72,852 863
10042 137
6,905,200
1,625,000

91,425 200

$563,061,768
86.03%

13.97%
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5. Pledged Revenue Coverage

= 10 years

Name of Government

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
June 30, 2022

Special Assessment Bonds

Special
Fiscal Assessment Debt Service
Year Collections Principal Interest Coverage

2022 $ 658,000 $ - ()% 188,000 3.5
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aDemographic and Economic Information

= 2 schedules

1. Demographic and economic indicators
(10 years)
oPopulation
oTotal personal income
oPer capital personal income
oUnemployment rate



®  Demographic and Economic
Information (cont.)

= 2 schedules (cont.)

2. Principal employers (current year and
9 years prior)
oTen principal employers
oNumber of persons employed by each

oPercentage of total employment
represented by each employer
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Demographic and Economic Indictors
(example)

Name of Government
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Level in
Years of Public
Fiscal Median Per Capita Personal Formal School Unemployment

Year Population(1) Age(l) Income (1) Income Schooling (2) Enrollment (2) Ratel(3)
2022 57,468 37.8 $31,241 $1,795,357,788 14.9 7,067 7.1%
2021 57,100 379 31,442 1,795,338,200 14.9 7,167 4.6
2020 57,079 37.6 31,728 1,811,002,512 15.0 6,820 35
2019 56,972 37.8 30,222 1,721,807,784 15.1 6,940 3.7
2018 57,250 379 29,315 1,678,283,750 15.3 6,727 3.6
2017 56,5825 37.8 28,007 1,591,497,775 15.4 6,972 4.2
2016 56,216 38 27,156 1,526,601,696 15.5 6,868 43
2015 35,664 38.2 25,823 1,437,411,472 15.7 6,546 43
2014 54,297 38.3 25,325 1,375,071,525 15.8 6,546 3.3

2013 53,307 38.1 24,2925 1,291,362,075 15.9 6,622 3.1



®
Principal Employers (example

Name of Government
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2022 2013

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City
Employer Employees Rank  Employment Employees Rank Employment
Hospital Center 1,300 1 3.26% 1125 1 3.38%
School District 1,155 2 2.90% 995 2 3.22%
Name of Government 1,151 3 2.89% 822 3 1.62%
IBM 700 4 1.76% 352 9 0.58%
Fortuno 650 5 1.63% -
Rehabilitation Hospital 550 b 1.38% 498 4 1.25%
Bloomingdale's 500 7 1.25% 462 5 1.22%
Nordstrom 440 8 1.10% 402 8 1.16%
National Economic Research 430 9 1.08% -
Alliance Capital Management Corp. 430 10 1.08% -
XYZ Corporation 410 7 1.19%
State Mental Health Facility 422 6 1.21%
Spark Electric 298 10 0.52%

7,306 18.32% 3,786 15.35%



®
Operating Information

= 3 schedules

1. Information about the government's employees (10
years)
o By function/program
o Headcount or full-time equivalent (FTE)
o Year-end or period average

2. Operating indicators (10 years)

o Designed to reflect demand for and level of service (not
performance measures)

o By function or program

3. Information on capital assets (10 years)
o Volume, usage, or nature



B 1. Information on Government’s
Employees (example)
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Name of Government
Full-time Equivalent Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Function
General government an 309 309 &Il 31 313 296 306 302 310
Public safety
Police
Officers 177 176 175 187 183 185 180 177 182 176
Civilians 76 74 75 80 79 79 77 76 78 75
Fire
Firefighters and officers 127 125 125 13 131 132 128 126 130 125
Civilians 42 43 2 44 43 44 43 42 44 42



®

2. Operating Indicators (example)

325

(General Government:
Building permits issued

Public Safety:

Number of police personnel and officer:

Number of arrests

Number of traffic violations
Number of parking violations
Number of paid firefighters

Number of fire emergency responses
Number of fires extinguished
Number of fire inspections

Number of school crossing guards

Name of Government

Last Ten Years

Operating Indicators by Function

Fiscal Year

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
1,224 1,751 1,630 1,440 1,622 1,752 1,576 1,494 1,699 1,877
249 245 245 245 243 242 229 229 230 219
4797 4,574 4,227 4,736 4,325 3,545 2,802 2,967 2,813 3,142
23,740 25:252 23,138 26,311 20,913 16,693 14,490 17,891 10,024 9,459
228,113 233,697 244,882 248,030 265,569 235,406 219,953 241,392 205,220 214,963
165 165 165 161 158 162 162 159 167 163
3,825 4,197 4,372 4,163 4,106 3,829 3,346 3,351 3,339 3,441
76 91 85 87 140 112 75 70 71 70
1,928 1,851 1,822 1,530 1,891 1,686 1,432 1,528 1,717 1,704
24 23 23 24 24 23 23 20 22 22



Sources: Various city departments
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3. Information on Capital Assets
Name of Government
Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Years
Fiscal Year
2022 2021 2020 012 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

General Govemmens:

Number of general government buildings 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 z
Public Safety:

Number of solice stations 1 1 L 1 1 | 1 1 1 1

Number of fire stations 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Parking Diepartment:

Mumber of sarking garages 7 6 6 6 6 & fr 6 f 6
Mublic Works:

Number of dublic works buildings B b 5 5 5 5 3 3 o 5

Miles of strects 1422 42 142 140 140 135 135 135 135 135

Number of strect lights 5,700 5,700 5,700 7,500 6,000 000 6,000 6,000 6,000 5,600

Miles of sanitary sewers [127.1 121 127 (245 124.8 1248 1248 1248 1248 1244

Miles of storm water drains Bl4 822 B2 815 BL5 BL5 BL5 B15 K15 k15
Eecreation and Parks

Mumber of sarks and recrcation faclitics 23 b 23 23 23 prie] 20 19 19 [{]

Avis ol pinks 230.7 2307 230.7 8307 230.7 257 2257 171 217.1 2171
Water

Miles of water mains I56.4 182 158.1 [58.1 153.1 1574 157.8 157 8 157.8 1555

Number of fire hydrants 772 L7 1,769 [, 767 1,767 1762 1,762 1,762 1,762 1,759




Question 1
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What Is the focus of the statistical section?
A. The assessment of financial position

B. The assessment of economic condition
C. Both

D. Neither




B |
Question 2

Which of the following is an objective of the
statistical section?

A. Provide information on liquidity

B. Provide information on service efforts and
accomplishments

C. Provide information on capital asset
condition

D. All of the above
E. None of the above



B |
Question 3

Trend data are provided in the statistical
section for which of the following?

A. Government-wide financial statements
B. Governmental fund financial statements
C. Proprietary fund financial statements

D. All of the above

E. Both Aand B



B |
Question 4

Information regarding a government’s
employees should be reported based on

A. Headcount

B. Full-time equivalent
C. BothAand B

D. Either Aor B



B |
Question 5

The Statistical Section I1s audited?
A. True
B. False



